AGARWAL & SAXENA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

D-111‘ FG'F;, Panslchegl Enclave, New Delhi-110017
Cell: +91-9958274404, +91-9811753833
e-mail - mail@agasax.com, abhishek@agasax.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited (“the Company™).
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity. and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explanatory information

(hercinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aloresuid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) in the manner so required and
cive a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of
alliics of the Company as at March 31. 2024, its profits including other comprehensive income. changes in equity

and its cash tlows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
(inancial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethies
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAIT) together with the ethical requirements that are
levant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have
fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 1CADs Code ol Ethics. We
helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the Financal Statements.
Canphasis ol mater
Attention is invited to:
1) Note no 39 regarding the demand of stamp duty raised by ADM (F & R) Bulandshahr o1 Rs 84.55 millions
in relation to transfer of land parcel. The Component believes that it has no liaoility wad 11 required, any

payment for the same will be tully recoverable from Agauta Sugar & Chemical Linited (as stated in the said

Hote ).

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above said matter.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position.
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
forensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant dogbt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude thata material




uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures.
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d.

b.

d.

]

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2 i. (vi) below on reporting

under rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity. and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books

of account:

In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2024, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act:

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in the paragraph 2b above on reporting under Section 143 (3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2 i. (vi) below on

reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2024:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in “Annexure B™.

In our opinion. no managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid / provided by

the Company;

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

(1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
finanefal statements — Refer Note 35 to the financial statements:

F;



(1i)

(111)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented. that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until the date of this
report.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account. which does not have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility as required by proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.
2014,

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 002405C

e

CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership No. 525829

UDIN: 24525829BKLSUW3934

Date: 27" May 2024
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph | under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited on the financial statements

for the year ended 3 1** March 2024)

(1)

(a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of property. plant and equipment and relevant details of
right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property. plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the title deeds of all the immovable properties
held by the Company (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lcase
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements
are held in the name of the Company except for the following-:

| Description | Gross Held in | Whether | l’rn];ert_\_'m—r Reason for |
of property carrying name of ‘ promoter, | held since | not being
' value (Rsin | director or i which date | held in name
millions) | their : of company*®

| ‘ relative or
. employee

Leasehold | 3.75 | Willard No 01.10.2020 | As per
| (27.0704 | India I " published
hectare , Limited . notice in
| ‘ official
| (73.08 ! . gazette on 19-
| Acres) : ' L 1121994 "the
‘ said fand"

| Village | .
Mudi | |

' Bakapur. ! - lease by
Bulandshahr | gﬂ'\ct‘nmc{u _
Uttar | ‘ of Utta

Pradesh - . i | Pradesh | o
245407 ' | | | .}gatzm Sugar
&  Chemical.

! - [ a division of
Willard India
' - lLtd. for a
period ot 90

was given on

5 | [ vears  w.e.f
| 01.12.1993
| i and ending on

'N_/?/ | ' | ’ [31.10.2083
LY I | _|vide _lease |

"4
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(11)

(d)

(a)

(b)

‘ | ‘ | deed  dated
' 27.08.1999
(the "head
Lease Deed").
' One of the
Condition of
the head lease
deed 1s that
the lessee
shall have no
right to sell
the lease
rights.
‘ However. the
‘ lessee  shall
have the right
to sublet any
part or whole

o any person
/ company for
similar  and
ancillary
purposes.

The title deeds of immovable which have been pledged as security for loans taken by the
Company, has been verified from the charge document.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not revalued its Property.
Plant and Equipment (and Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly.
reporting under clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such verification of inventories
when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has working capital limits in excess of
Rs 5 crore. in aggregate, sanctioned by banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with
such banks and such statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for
the respective periods and no material discrepancy was found in the same. The Company has not
been sanctioned any working capital limit from the financial institutions.



(i)

(1v)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not made any investment in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantec or
security or granted any loans or advances i1 the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the
year. However, the Company has made investments during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clauses 3(iii) (¢).(d).(e). and (1) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any transaction

covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as
deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Central Government has specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of
the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
and are of the opinion that, prima facie. the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the in formation and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax.
provident fund. employees’ state nsurance. income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, , duty of
customs, duty of excise. value added tax. cess and other material statutory dues. as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues of Goods
and Service Tax. Provident Fund. Employees™ State Insurance, Income-tax. Sales tax. Duty of
Customs. Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the
Company on account of any dispute as on 31 March 2024, except the following-:

Name ‘ Nature | Gross . Amount paid | Period to ' Forum where |
of the | ofdues | Amount under Protest | which the dispute is pending
| statute . (Rsin ! (Rs in amount

| . millions) | millions) relates |




(viil)

(Ix)

(x)

(xi)

(a)

(b)

(€)

()

(f)

(a)

(a)

‘ | Excise 0.89 | 0.07 ‘ 2010-11 to Commissionerate |
| duty | 2012-13 Adjudication cell. \
‘ | Noida 1l
 Central fxzxcise 183 | 0.18 I 2012-13to | CESTAT, Allahabad |
‘ Excise duty ‘ ‘ 14-15 |
Act ‘ | |

‘ 1944 +—— : — : = ——-—-—'_'_ﬁ
T Excise | 028 | 0.03 T 2014-1510 | CESTAT. Allahabad |

| | duy | | ‘ 2015-16 |

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company. no (ransactions were surrendered or disclosed as
income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its
loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, we report that the Company has not been declared
2 willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company. money raised by way of term loans were applied

for the purposes for which these were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company. we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used
for long term purposes by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the vear and hence.
reporting under clause 3 (ix) (¢) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and hence.
reporting under clause 3 (ix) (1) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). during the year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x) b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given (o us. no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit. -




(Nii)

(i)

(x1v)

(xv)

(xv1)

(xvil)

(xviii)

(NIN)

(b)

()

(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no report under section 143(12) of the

Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company. there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is nota Nidhi Company.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act. where applicable and the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company issued till date
for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and
accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act. 1934. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding

financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response to our communication with the
outgoing auditors. there have been no issues. objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payvment of financial liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 1o
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any suarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

will get discharggg by the Company as and when they fall due.




(XX) The company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special amount in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly. reporting under clause (XX) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

(xxi) The company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and thus the Company is
not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3
(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Agarwal & Saxena

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 002403C

v
CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership No. 525829

UDIN: 24525829BKLSUW3954

Date: 27" May 2024
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31" March 2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components ol
ternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intern: | Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAIT).

These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to
company’s policies. the sa feguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under

i

the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
svstem over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audil
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

<
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting o future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Agarwal & Saxena

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 002405C

i

CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership No. 525829

UDIN: 24525829BKLSUW3954

Date: 27" May 2024
Place: New Delhi




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance sheet as at 31st March 2024
CIN: U15422DL2010PTC200012
(All amounts are in rupees miflion, uriless otherwise stated)

. As at As at As at
BNl Notes| .. March2024 | 31stMarch 2023 | Olst April 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment {including right of use assets) 3 1,565.54 1,601.19 1,516.56
Capital work-in-progress 3 11.25 8.12 11481
Intangible assets 3 0.05 0.00 0.00
Financial assets
Other non-current financial assets 5 3.95 2.48 2.92
Non-current tax assets 6 114.94 135.05 139.87
Other non-current assets 7 16.79 7.24 5.10
Total non-current assets 1,712.52 1,754.08 1,779.25
Current assets
Inventories 8 1,965.56 1,672.64 1,649.96
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 1.01 4.19 195
Cash and cash eguivalents 10 10.16 3.80 361
Other bank balances 11 161 2.15 1.45
Other current financial assets 12 0.49 0.67 4.50
Other current assets 13 13,95 17.47 14.51
Total current assets 1,992.79 1,700.92 1,675.98
TOTAL ASSETS 3,705.31 3|454.99 3,455.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 733.22 500.49 500.49
Other equity 15 1,368.14 429.21 440.03
Total equity 2,101.36 929.70 940.52
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 47.18 75.07 101.39
Lease liabilities 17 0.18 0.19 0.19
Deferrad tax liabilities {net] 18 18115 195.25 209.64
Net employee benefit liabilities 19 36.03 31.32 28.47
Total non-current liabilities 264.54 301.83 339.70
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 74724 1,948.77 1,670.00
Lease liabilities 17 0.16 0.64 1.08
Trade payables
- Total outstanc.hng dues of micro enterprises and 21 1.06 154 134
small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of r.'re@tcrs other than micro 2 520.88 219.22 426.85
enterprises and small enterprises
Other current financial liabilities 22 29.83 25.05 34.90
Other current liabilities 23 20.27 17.06 3121
Net employee benefit liabilities 24 12.59 11.20 9.62
Income tax liabilities (net) 7.38 0.00 0.00
Total current liabilities 1,339.41 2,223.47 2,175.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,705.31 3,454.99 3,455.21
Material accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these 1.48

financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
i{C Al Firm Registration Number: 002405C

7
v

CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership Number: 525829
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For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited

\ Atul M \f‘%gh

Director Whole - time Director
DIN : 00175355 DIN : 03537522

W (9'.“’9%"
Rabindra Saho, Vinod Annarkar

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
A-27158
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ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED

statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 24
CIN: U15422DL2010PTC200012

(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

N i Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 25 3,323.38 2,945.56
Other income 26 13.93 19.78
Total income 3,337.31 2,965.34
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 27 2,909.07 2,394.90
Purchase of traded goods 28 23.05 30.47
increasel(dec.rease] in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 296.95 355
progress and intermediate products and traded goods 29
Employees benefit expense 30 129.98 141.74
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 121.71 89.55
Finance costs 32 78.95 99.97
Other expenses 33 247.34 237.06
Total expenses 3,213.15 2,968.17
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 124.15 -2.83
Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00
Profit/(Loss) before tax 124.15 -2.83
Tax expense:
Current tax 57.95 19.62
Deferred tax 18 -13.09 -13.62
Income tax expense 44.86 6.00
Profit/(loss) for the year 79.29 -8.83
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
_ Remeasurement of defined benefit plans -3.65 -2.76
- Revaluation reserve on assets 0.00 0.00
- Tax relating to above items 1.01 0.77
-2.63 -2.00
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (net of tax) 76.66 -10.82
Earnings per share 34
Basic 1.05 -0.22
[Face value of equity share INR 10/- each]
Diluted 1.25 -0.22
[Face value of equity share INR 10/- each]
Material accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements 1-48

As per our attached report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 002405C

Wf

CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership Number: 525829
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Place: MNMeLD Qeﬁ/{"‘-j‘
Date: &31 )1%’

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited

Y

Atul Chaturvedi
Director
DIN : 00175355

R a%/rﬁég{gf

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Murﬂba.l
Date: 93 Oglllf

Uz~

Vijendra Singh
Whole - time Director
DIN : 03537522

‘ L) !5
Vinod Annarkar

Company Secretary
A- 27158

Place: H U mL ol
Date: LH 0511,_{




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statemnent of changes in equity for the year ended 315t March, 2024
CIN: U15422DLZ010PTC200012

[All gmounts ore in rupees millions, unless otherwise stoted)

. Equity shareca pital

Ne of Amount
Shares
in milligns

As at Olst April 2022
Equity shares issued during the year

As at 315t March 2023

Equity shares issued dufing the year
s at 31st March 2024

50.05 500.49

50.05 500.49
2337 232.73
73.32 733.22

b, Other equi
Reserves and surplus Items of OCI Total
Securities Equity ] Retained | Cashflow | Costof Changesin| .o
premium earnings | hedge resarve hedging | n reserve equity quly
reserve on PPE | instrument

As at O1st April 2022 438.43 - - = = 240,03
Profit for the year (8.83) - - (866}
Other camprehensive inceme - - (2.00) = - (2.00)
Total Comprehansive Income 047 - {10.82) - - - - {10.85)
Transferred to PAL - - . . .
Transfer to Molasses Reserve fund {0171 (0.17)
Depreciation of revalued assets - - - -

As at 315t March 2023 177 - 427,44 . . . - 429.21
Profit for the year 018 - 79.29 - . - - 79.48
Other comprehensive income = (2.63) - . - - (2.63)
Forward contract reserva - - - - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 0.18 - 76.66 - - - i 76.84
Transferred to PAL - . .
Interest waiver from parent - = :

Transfer to Molasses Reserve fund 10.18) . - - - |0.18)
Depreciation of revalued assets . - 1

Shares issued during the year 862.27 - = % n BGZ.27
As at 31s1 March 2024 B62.27 | 1.96 - 503.52 - - - 1,368.14
Material accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 1-48

s per our attacned report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
ICAS Eirm Registration Murmber: 0024050

s

ek hu Singh
artner
Membership Numbe:: 515:32
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For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited

Atul cm/ Viféndra Singh

Director ‘Whole - time Director
DIN : 00175355 DIN; 03537522
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mhinW - Vinod Annarkar

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
A- 27158
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ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED

statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN: U15422DL2010PTC200012

(All amounts are in rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

As per our attached report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
|CAl Firm Registration Number: 002405C

T

CA Reshu Singh
Partner
Membership Number: 525829

UDIN, Iy S_J/g Q29 BKLSV INEEANP
Place:  ALCLD Ou.uu?

Date: Q'}«’ d@bj

[_ Year ended Year ended
31st Mar 2024 31st March 2023
Operating Activities:
Profit before tax and after exceptional items 124.15 (2.83)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 120.08 87.75
Depreciation on Right to use asset 1.62 1.80
Excess provision write back (7.82) (6.69)
Finance costs 78.95 99.97
Finance income (1.81) (0.48)
Loss/(Profit) on disposal of property, plant & equipment 1.42 0.82
Dividend income - {1.70)
Doubtful Claim Receivable Written off 0.01 0.88
stare inventory written off 436
Working capital adjustments:
{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivables 3.18 (2.24)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other receivables 3.70 0.78
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (297.28) (22.68)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets (0.19) (0.13)
(Decrease)/ Increase in Trade and other payables 309.00 (200.74)
(Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions 245 167
(Decrease)/ Increase in Other Liabilities 14.47 (15.14)
356.31 (58.97)
Income-tax refund/{paid) (37.84) (14.81)
Net Cash Flow From /(used in) Operating Activities 318.48 (73.78)
Investing activities:
purchase of property, plant and equipment (100.17) (84.10)
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.67 2.93
Praceeds from /{Investment in) fixed deposit (0.74) 0.13)
Interest received (finance income) 1.84 0.45
Dividend received - 1.70
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (97.40) (79.14)
Financing activities:
proceeds from Issue of Equity shares (Right Issue) 1,095.00 -
Repayment of Preference shares [ Including Premium on repayment) (1,063.90) 55.14
Proceeds from Borrowings - >
Repayment of Barrowings [165.51) 197.30
Finance cost and processing charges paid (79.82) (98.87)
payment of lease liability (0.49) (0.47)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities (214.72) 153.11
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6.35 0.20
Opening cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 3.80 3.61
Closing cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10} 10.16 3.80
The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method set out in
ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flow
Material accounting policies 210
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements 1-48

Eor and on behalf of the Board of directors of

Atul Chaturvedi

Director

DIN : 00175355

Raw

Chief Financia

| Oﬁicer

Place: Mumh&j
Date:}_:—_’,l 05—(1[_'

s Private Limited

% Anamika Sugar Mill
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A%;gh

Whole - time Director
DIN ; 03537522

Vinod Annarkar
Company Secretary
A- 27158
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ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended as at 31st March, 2024

21

Corporate infarmation

Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited ("ASMPL" or “the Company”) is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in |
\ndia and is wholly owned suhsidiary of Shree Renuka Sugars Ltd (SRSL) . The registzred office of the Campany 1s located at Flat

Mo, 32-33, Satkar Building, 79-80, Nehru Place, New Delhl -110019. The CIN number of the Company s

U15422DL2010PTC200012. |
The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of sugar and generation of power for salf- consumption.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 27th May 2024,

Material accounting policies

Basis of Preparation:
The financial statements of the Compary has been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified

under the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time).

The finangial stataments have been prepared ona historical cost basis, except for the following assets and habilities which have
heen measured at fair value or revalued amount:

Land, buildings and plant and machinery classified as property, plant and equipment.

Certaimn financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer note 2.1(1}{o) financial instruments).

The financial statements are prepared in INR and all values are rounded off to the nearest millions except when stated

otherwise,

summary of material accounting policies:
Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:
Expected to be realised or intended to be cold or consumed in nermal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve maonths after
the reporting period

All ather assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It 1s due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Labilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
eguivalents. The campany has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Foreign currencies
The Company's financial statements are presented n INR, which is also the Company's functional currency.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at tair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transter a liahility in an orderiy transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
soll the asset artransfer the liability takes place either:
- livthe principzl market for the asset or liability, ar

Inthe absenca of a Principal market, in the mast advantageous market For the asset or liability.




The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible oy the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use whet pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markeat

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate econenic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highast and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
mieasure fair value, maximising the use of relevant chservatile inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whaole:
. Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that |s significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observabie.
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the finarcial statements on a recurring basis, the Company deterrmines whether
transfers have occurred hetween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recopnised when contrel of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Compary has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically contrals the goods or
seryices before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred Lo the customer, on
delivery of the goots, Revenue from sale of services (sale of power) is recopnised on a basis as per the contract terms based on
actual services provided for the year. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are
separate performance oblgations 1o which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the
transaction price for the sale of goods and services, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence
of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any}.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be antitled in exchange for transferring the goods and services to the customer, The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not eccur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

4 receivable represents the Company's right tg an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (o) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

& contract liability is the ebligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the paymant is made or the payment is dug
{whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recogmised as revenueg when the Company performs undar the contract,

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
incame is recorded using the effective intarest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
paymients or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 10 the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate; the Company estimates the axpected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the finangial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extansion, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.




Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders

approve the dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense itern, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed, When the grant relates to an
asget, it is recognised as incame in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related assel.

When the Company receives grants of non-monatary s5sets, the asset and the grant dre recorded at fair valug amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying assel 1e. by
agual annual instalments. when loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest
rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is reparded as a government grant. The laan
or assistance Is initially recognised and measurad at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference betweean
the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan Is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
applicable to financial liabilities.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities arg measured at the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, aL the
reporting date

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in GCI
or directly in equity. Management pariodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no langer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 10 allow all or part of the deferred tax assel 10 be utilised. Unrecognised
defarred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will aliow the defarred tax asset to be recovered.

Daferred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against

currant tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
freehold land, buildings and plant, machinery and equipment, are carried n the palance sheet on the basis of revaluation
model The revaluation of these assets|is conducted every three years by the Company

Furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Capitalised costs include cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. when sipnificant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection i
performed, its cost is recopnised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present valug of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use |5 included in the cost of the respective asset if the recogmtion
criteria are met. Capital work in propressis stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment, if any.

Land, buildings and plant and machinery are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impalrment
losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency tu ensure that the carrying
amount of a revalued asset does nat differ materially from its fair value,

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation reserve in equity. However, to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or foss, the increase is recognised in profit and
loss, A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except Lo the extent that it offsats an existing surplus
on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve



an annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve 1o retained earnings is made for the difference hetween deprecation
pased on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s ariginal cost. Additionally,
accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amaunt is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset

being sold is transferred directly Lo retained earnings,
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category Useful life

Buildings 3 - 60 Years
Plant and Equipment’s 1-40 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10 Years
Wehicles 7-8 Years

The Company. based on technical assessment made by experts and based on management estimate, depreciates certain items
of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1 to
the Companies Act, 2013. The managament belioves that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the ascets are likely to be used,

Anitem of property, plant and equipmeant and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upen disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected fram its use Of disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amartised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method tor an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful lifa or the
expected pattern of consumptian of future economic benefits embedied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting ectimates, The amartisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regardad as an adjustment to the barrowing costs,

Leases

The Company zpplies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie, the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Leasehold land is carried in the balance <heet based on revaluation model. Other right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease habilities recognised, initial dirert costs Incurred, and
lease payments made at or befare the commencement date less any lpasa incentives received, Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transters to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The righi-of-Usc assetsare also subject Lo impairment.
Amortisation i= calculated an a straight-ling basis over the lease period of the assets.

TO




Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentivas recelvable, variable lgase payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate Variable laase payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories} in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company Uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily ceterminable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to ceflact the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities 1s remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes 1o future paymeants resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
paymenls) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption 10 leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

. Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and ather costs incurred In bringing the inventorias to their present location
and candition, Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

- Finished goods, intermediate goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on
weighted average basis.

- Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, Cast is determined on weighted average basis.

- By-products and scraps are valued at net realisable value,

wet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair valug
lass costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. if no such transactions can be identfied, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Campany bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate s calculated and applied to project future cash flows
atter the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company extrapelates cash fiow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent yaars, uniess
an increasing rate can be justified. ln any case, tins growth rate does not exceed the lang-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of rontinuing operations, including impairment an inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, except for propecthes previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairmant s
jﬁ'r‘ OCLeR to the amount of any pravious revaluation surplus.




For assets excluding goodwill, an assgssment is made at gach reporting date to determine whether thera is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication exists, the Company estimatas the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount cince the last impairment lass was recognised. The raversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which rase, the

reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingencies

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources ambadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating toa provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effact of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a currént pra-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of ime
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities exist when there s a possibile ohligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or Non-oCcurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of rescurces will
be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits is remote.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirerment beneafit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Comgpany has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due far services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future paymant or a cash refund,

Retirement benafit in the form of Gratuity and Leave encashment are considered as defined benafit obligations. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined henefit plan is on the basis of an actuarial valuation determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI( except Leave Liability) in the period in which they occur.
Re-measuremants are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Long term employee benefits:

Compensated absences are not sxpected to occur within twelve manths after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance
sheet date.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case af financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that reguire delivery of assets within a ume frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.



Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Debt instruments at amortised cost.

. Debtinstruments at fair value through other camprehensive income (FVTOC).

- Debt instrumants, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through prolit or loss [FVTPL).
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOLCI).

Financial asset at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the smortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a] The asset is held within a business model whose objactive is ta hald assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant 1o the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or foss, The losses arising from impairment arg recognisad in the profit or loss, This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables and loans given to supsidiaries.

Financial asset at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business maodel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 3ssets,
and

b} The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Faur
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interast income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign axchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCHIS reclassified from the eauity to profit and loss.

The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTOCL

Financial assel at Fair Value through profit and loss
FYTRL i5 @ residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for calegorization as at
armortized cost or as FVTOCH s classified as at FVTPL.

1 addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCH criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces of gliminates a measurement or recognition
incansistancy (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’), The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments Included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and

loss.

Financial asset designated at Fair Value through OCI (equity instruments)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as @t
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprenensive
income subsaguent changes in the fair valua, The Company makes such election an an instrument-By-instrument basis. The
classification is iiade on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrumant, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of
\nwestiment, Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of pavment has heen
astahlished, except when the Company banefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost or the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCIL Equity instruments designated at fair value through QC! are not subject to

impairment assessment.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
deracognised (i.e reinoved from the Company's balance sheet) when:

. Tne rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.




When the Company has trapsferred its rights 1o receive Cash flows from an asset or has entered into a nass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recegnise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. I that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Caompany applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and cradit risk exposure:

2. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
recelvables and bank balance.
b Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL
¢ Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 115 (referred to as ‘Trade receivables’).
4. Loan commitments which are net measured as at FVTRL,
e Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL.
The Campany follows ‘simplified approach’ for recagnition of impairment loss allowance on:
Trade receivables or contract revenue receivabies; and
- Lpans and ather financial assets.

The application of simplified approach does not reguire the company to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss(ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

£CL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense {or income) in the statement
of profit and loss. This amount is reflactad under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The halance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

- Finarcial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, 1.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount,
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts; ECL s presented asa provision in the balance sheet, l.e.asa liability.

for assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the hasis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable signiticant increases in credit
risk to be identified on a timely basis

The Company does nat have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assats, .., financial assets which are
credit impaired on purchase/ origination,

(b} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
atiributable transaction COStS.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and barrowings including bank overdratts, financial
guarantee contracts, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.

Subsgquent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entared into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as neld for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments.



2.2

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria inind AS 106 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and
loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumuiative gain or loss within eguity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value

through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to tne Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Other financial liabilities

The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements (letter of credit acceptances) whereby lenders such as banks and
other financial institutions make payments to supplier's banks far purchase of materials, The banks and financiai institutions are
subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date providing working capital benefits, These arrangements are In the pature of
credit extended in normal operating cycle and these arrangements are recognized as acceptances under trade payables.
interest borne by the company on such arrangements is accounted as finance cost. Other financial liabilities (including
horrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
dekt instrument, Financial guarantee contracts are recogiised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the puarantee. Subseguently, the liability is measured at the tugher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of ind AS 109 and the amount recognisad less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and

the recognition of a new liability. The difference in Lhe respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit ar
loss.

(¢)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there ic a currently
enforcaable legal right to offset the recognised amaunts and there is an intention to settla on a net basis, 1o realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

8asic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of the company (after
deducting preference dividends and aitributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
tha period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of eguity
shares putstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as borus issue, bonus element in a rights 1ssue, share split, and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit cr loss for the period, attributable to equity
sharehalders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Significant accounting judgments estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make jutlgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the accompanying disciosures, and the
disclosire of-contingent labilities. Uncertainty about these assumptlions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 3
material d:iius_‘.'i:uent to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and astimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflectad in the assumptions
when they occur.

1. Revaluation of property, plant and eguipment

The Company measures land, buildings, plant and machinery classifiad as property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts
with changes in fair value being recognised in revaluation reserve. The Company had engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess fair value as at D1st April 2022 for revaluation of land, buildings, plant and equipment. Fair value o land was
determined by using the market approach, fair value of building was determined by using depreciated replacement cost {DRC)
and fair value of plant & equipment was determined by using depreciated replacerment cost (DRC) method.

2. Taxes
Provision is made for current tax, estimated to arise on the results for the year, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1561,

Deferred tax Assets and liabilities arising on account of timing differences, which are capable of reversal in subsegueant periods,
are recopnized using the tax rates and Lax jaws that have been enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date, The
deferred tax assets are recopnized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assels can be realized.

3. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making

various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These inciude the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables, Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuily increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

New and amended standards.

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning an
or after O1st April 2022

1. Property, Plant and Equiprment: proceeds before Intended Use = Amendments to ind AS i6

The amendrments maodified paragraph 17{e} of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the
cost of testing, If any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered
as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment,

The amendments are atfective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after O1st April 2022, These amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company as there were o sales of such items produced by property,
plant and eguipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

These amendmants had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

2. ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
herween the horrower and the lender, including fees paid ar received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment (the date of
initial application). These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company as thare were
no maodifications ofr the Company’s financial instruments during the period.
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ion, unless otherwise stated)

(Al gmounts are in rUpees im

Nate 3: Property, plant and equipment
[_ Freenald land | Buildings Plant, Furniture and | Vehicles Right-of-use Tetal for Capital work-in- | Total (a8
machinery fixtures assets’ property, progress **
and plant and (B}
eguipment equipment
(Al
Gross block
As at 015t April 2022 197.44 130.99 414,04 0.16 1.63 6,40 759.66 114.81 74,48
Revaluatian 217.56 183.30 356.03 - - 756,50 756,20
As at 01st April 2022 415,00 323.30 770.07 0.16 163 G40 1,516.56 11481 1,631.37
Additions .74 175.30 .07 1.82 = 17753 26.20 204.13
Disposals 3.68) (o.a?) = (3.75) {130.77) 1124.52}
Adjustments 12.13) {2.13)
Revaluation - -
Transfer - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 415.00 324.03 941.69 0.24 3.37 .40 1,650,73 B.12 1,698.85
Additions = 202 B6.28 0,16 070 - 809.16 77.11 166.27
Disposals {5.73) - - {1.26) [6.99) {73.98) (80971
Revaluation - - . - - - - - -
As at 31st March 2024 415.00 326.05 1,022.24 040 4.07 5,14 1,772.90 11.25% 1.784.15
Depraciation and impairment
As at D1st April 2022 - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year (refer note 31) - 13.44 73.83 0.04 0.44 1.80 33.55 29.55
Disposals - -
Impairment - - =
Tranzfer - - - - - =
As at 31st March 2023 13.44 13,83 0.04 044 89.55 B9.55
Depretiation charge for the year {refer note 31} 16,68 10254 0.20 0.65 121,91 12171
Disposals - - {2.63} - - |3.90} (3.20]
As at 31st March 2024 30,12 173.74 0.25 1.10 207.36 207.36
Net book value
As at 31st March 2024 415,00 295.93 848.50 0.15 297 298 1,565.54 11.25 1.576.79
As at 31st March 2023 415.00 310,59 BET.86 0.19 2.94 4,60 1,601.19 8.12 1.60%3.30
As at 01st April 2022 415.00 323.30 770.07 0.16 1.63 6.40 1,516.50 114.81 1,631.37

*+ Ear further information refer note 4

*+ Capital work-in-pragrass is net of additions made during the year,



A, Revaluation of land, buildings and plant, machinery and equipment

. the Company had acpointad a registered independent valusr who has relevant valugtion experience for valuation of property, plant and equipment in India for

luers and Valuation) Rules, 2017, to determine the fair valus of freehold land, building, plant and machineries
land of INR 217 56 millian and increase in building of INR

During the previous year ended 31st March 2024
maere than 10 years and i a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Va
and leasehold land (forming part of right of use azsets]. As an cutcome of this process, the Company has recognized increase in tha gross block of freehald
183,30 million and plant & machinerias {incl other squipments) of INR 356.03 millian, The Company recognised this increase within the revaluation reserve at the date of fransition to IND-AS {.e. 01st April 2022
The Company determined thase fair values after cansidering physical condition of the asset, technical usability / capacity, salvage value, quotes from Indepencent vendors. The fair value of land iz determined
using market approach and building, plant, machinery and equipment using Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC). The ORC iz derived fram the Gross Currant Rearaduction | Replacement Cost IGCRC) which is

reduced by considering depreciation.

B. Capital work in progress (CWIP] Ageing Schedule
As at 31st March 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Praojects in progress 10.5% 066 - E 11.25
Projects temporarily suspended - - .
Total 10.59 .66 - - 11.25
A5 at 31 March 2023
Amount in CWIP far a period Tatal
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
year years
Projects in progress 421 io - 12
Projects tempararily suspended e . % = ]
Total 4.21 3.91 - - 8.12
As ar D1st April 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period Total_|
Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years Mare than 3
year years
Projectsir 11451 - E - 114.81
Projects temporarily suspended - -
Total 114,81 - - - 114.81




Mote 34: Intangible assets

Particulars Computer
software

Grass block
As at 01st April 2022
Revaluation -
As at O1st April 2022
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation
Transfar
As at 31st March 2023
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation
Transfer =
Additions 0.06
Disposals
Revatuation
Transter =
As at 31st March 2024 0.06
Amortisation and impairment
As at O1st April 2022 =
Amartisation far the year (refer note 31)
Qisposals -
As at 31st March 2023
amartisation for the year (refer note 31)
Disposalz =
As at 31st March 2024 0.00
Net book value
As atr 31st March 2024 .05

As at 31st March 2023
As at Dist April 2022
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{4l amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 4: Right of use assets

Company as a lessee

Leasehold Land

Description of Praperty - Leasehold {27.0704 hectare | 73.06 Acres| : illage Mudi Bakapur, Bulandshahr, Uttar Pradesh - 245407

4 "the said land" was given an lease by government of Uttar Pradesh 1o M/s Agauta Sugar & Chernical, a division of

As per published natice in official gazette cn 18-11-
Willard India Ltd for & period of 90 years w.e f. 01,12.1993 and ending on 31.10.2083 vide lease deed dated 27.08,1999 (the "head Lease Ozed”). One of the Condition of
the head lease deed is that the lessee shall have na right to sell the lease rights. However, the lessee shall have the right to sublet any part or whole to any person |

campany for similar and ancillary purposes.

The sub-lease agreement has been exscuted by M/s Agauta Sugar & Chemicals Limited with M/s Anamika Sugar Mills Private Limited on 12-12-2012 (we f 30-09-2010),
which is valid far a peried upto 29-09-2039.

Temporary Structure

[he company has gat canstructed Iwe TEMporary structures {for godown purpozes) on lease for a period of 3 years (ending on Aug 24) and 2 5 yzars (ended in Dec 23)

Set out below are the carrying amaounis of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period

Particulars Leasehold Land Temporary Structure Total

ROU assets recognised to the extent of ROU liabilities
As at 01st April 2022 196 345 6.40
Prepayments capitalized as ROU & . .

RCU assets derecognized - . z
Balance as at 31st March 2023 2.96 3.45 6.40
Balance as at 1st April 2023 2.96 3.45 6,40
Prepayments capitalized as ROU - - .
ROU assets derscognized - 11.28} {1.26}
Balance as at 31st March 2024 2,96 2.18 5.14
Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation

Asat 0lst April 2022 - -

Depreciation expenses 0.17 162 1.80
Accurmulated depreciation on ROU assets derecognized = g =
Balance as at 31st March 2023 0.17 1.62 1.80
Depreciation expanses 0.17 144 1.62
Accumulated depreciation on RO assets derecognized = 11.28) (1.26)
Balance as at 31st March 2024 0.35 1.81 2.15

Net Carrying Value

Balance as at O1st April 2022 1.96 3.45 65.40
Balance as at 31st March 2023 278 1.82 4,60
Ralance as at 31st March 2024 2.61 0.38 2.98




Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under the head non-current and current financial liabilities) and the movements during the period:

Particulars Leasehold Land Temporary Structure Total

As at 01st April 2022 0.22 1.07 1.29
Additions g 3 e
Deletions K %
Accretion of interest 0.02 0.06 a.08
Payment of lease liabilities [0.02) (0.52) {0.55}
Balance at 31st March 2023 0.21 0.61 0.82
Additions - . -
Deletions -

Accrenion of interest 0.02 0.03 0.04
Payment of lease liabilities [0.02) {0.51) [0.53)
Balance as at 31st March 2024 0.21 0.13 0.34

o.02 1.07 (

Non-Current £.1% - 0.1%
Balance at Olst April 2022 0.22 1.07 1.29
Current 0.0z 061

Non-Currant 0:19

Balance at 31st March 2023 0.21 .61

Current 0.02 16
an-Current 0.18 - 0.18
Total lease liabilities as at 31st Mar 2024 0.21 0.13 0.34

The following are the amounts recognised in profit and loss :

particilars Year ended Year endead

31st March 2024 i1st March 2023
Depreciation expenses of right - of - use ascets 162 1.80
Interest expensas on lease liahilities 0.04 0.08
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 1.66 1,88

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 0.51 million {31st March 2023 INR 0,52 million] during the financial year ended 31st March 2024 The Company do

not have any future cash outtlows relating to leases that have not yet commenced. The Company has certain lease contracts that are nan-canceliable for fixed period ang

considered will be terminated after completion of non-cancellable period.




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED
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(Al amounts are in rupees milfion, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Other non-current financial assets

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
01st April 2022

Unsecured & considered good (at amortised cost)

I.:ixerl deposit under lien/ margin for BG {Maturing after 12 months) 187 058 115
(also refer note 11)
Security deposits 2,33 2.14 2.01
Less: impairment allowance 10.25) [C.25) 10.25)
3.95 2.48 2.92
Break-up for security details
Unsecured, considered good 3.95 . 2.92
Unsecured, credit impaired 0.25 0.25 0.25
Total (&) 4.20 2.72 Fulb:
Impairment allowance
Unsecured, considered good -
Unsecured, credit impaired (D.25) (0.25) {0.25)
Total (B) (0.25) (0.25) {0.25)
(A)-(B) 3.95 2.48 2.92
Note 6: Non-Current tax assets
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31 March 2023 01st April 2022
MAT credit recevable 114.94 135.05 139.87
Total 114.94 135.05 139.87
Note 7: Other non-current assets
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31 March 2023 01st April 2022
Capital advance 16.79 7.19 4,29
Prepayments - 0.05 0.81
Total 16.7% ] 7.24 5.10
Note 8: Inventories
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31 March 2023 01st April 2022
Raw Materiats [at cost) 0.91 D.33 4.85
‘Wark-in-Progress 25.58 27,23 22.25
Finished Goads: (at lower of cast or net realizable value); 1,894.25 1,595.66 1,575.13
Consumables, Stores & Spares * 44 82 A5.42 47.74
Total 1,965.56 1,672.64 1,649.96

Note 9: Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured*

* Includes packing material and transit stock INR 4.40 million (315t March 2023: INR 0.21 million)

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
01st April 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Recevables from third parties
Recavables from related parties

Unsecured, credit impaired
Receivables fram third parties
Recervables from related parties
Total (A)

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired
Total (B)
| Total (&) - (B)

1.01

1.01

4.19

1.95

4.19

1.95

*No trade ar othorreceivables are due from directars or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person

*Trade recevabies are nan-mterest hearing

<




Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at
31st March 2024

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

As at
31st March 2023

As at
01st April 2022

i. Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good :
Current but not due .
0.95

0.86

ii. Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good :
Current but not due E
Less than & Months
& manths— 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years -
Mare than 3 years =

Less than 6 Manths 311

6 months — 1 year 0.03 001 0.04

1-2 years - 0.03 0.02

2-4 years 0.02 0.02

Maore than 3 years 1.03 1.02
1.01 4.19 1.95

iii, Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired :
Current but not due =
Less than & Months
6 months— 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 years =

iv. Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired :
Current but not due

Less than & Months

& months = 1 year

1-2 years Z
2-3 years

tore than 3 years

Nate 10: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31 narch 2023

As at
01st April 2022

Unsecured and considered good (at amortised cost) ¢
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on Hand 0.23 0.44 0.30
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 9.93 3.35 3.30
Total 10.16 3.80 3.61
Mote 11: Other Bank balances
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31 March 2023 01st April 2022
Unsecured and considered good (at amortised cost) :
Other bank balances:®
Fixed deposit under lien/ margin for BG (Maturing within 12 months) 1.61 2:15 1.45
Fixed deposit under lien/ margin for BG (Maturing after 12 months) 1.87 0.58 1,15
3.47 2.73 2.60
Amaunt disclased under non-current assets {also refer note 5) [1.57} (0.58) {1.15)
Total 1.61 215 1.45

*Dut af the total twed deposits,

a) Rs 1.95 miliion [Previous year Rs.1.73 million) pledged with Authorities as margin money against molasses Reserve Fund.
h) Rs 152 million (Previous year Rs,1.00 million) lien against Bank Guarantees issued.




Note 12: Other current financial assets

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
01st April 2022

Unsecured and considered good (at amortised cost) :

Depasit with/ Receivable from Govt Dept 12.54 12.54 12.54
Less: Impairment allowance [12.54) (12.54} {12.54)
Security deposit towards office rent 0.39 0.39 0.39
Less: impairment allowance (0.04) 10.04) (0.04)
Accrued interest 0.11 .15 0.12
Other loans and advances 0.03 0.17 4.03
Total 0.43 0.67 4.50
Break-up for security details
Unsecured, considered good 0.49 0.67 4,50
Unsecured, credit impaired 12.58 12.58 12.58
Total (A) 13.08 13.25 17.09
Impairment allowance
Unsecured, considered good : E
Unsecured, credit impaired (12.58) {12.58) (12,58}
Total (B) (12.58) {12.58) (12.58)
{A)-B] ’_ 0.49 0.67 4.50
Note 13: Other assets
—
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31 Maich 2023 01st April 2022
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Prepayments 5.67 4.06 3.27
Balance with Government Authorities 7.43 8.56 5.01
Less; impairment allowance 10.32) (0.22) (0.32)
Advances to suppliers 1.09 0.47 1.63
Others 0.08 4.70 4.90
Total B 13.95 17.47 14,51
Break-up for security details
Unsecured, considered good 13.95 17.47 1451
Unsecured, credit impaired 0.32 0,32 0.32
Total (A) 14.27 17.78 14.82
Impairment allowance
Unsecured, cansidered good 5
Unsecured, credit impaired {0.32) 10.32) (0.32)
Total {B) {0.32) (0.32) (0.32)
(A)-(B) 13.95 17.47 14.51
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(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Equity share capital
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 01st April 2022
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Authorised share capital
12,00,00,000 {Previous year 5,00,00,000) Equity shares of s, 10 =ach 12,00,00,000 1,200.00 5,00,00,000 600.00 5,00,00,000 600.00
12,00,00,000 1,200.00 5,00,00,000 600.00 6,00,00,000 600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
7.33,21,703 (Previous year 5,00,48,589) fully paid up Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 7,33,21,703 733.22 5,00,48,585 500.49 5,00,48589 500.43
Total 7,33,21,703 733.22 5,00,48,585 500.49 5,00,48,589 500.49
Reconciliation of ber of shares and Equity Shares outstanding :
As at As at As at
M 1 i
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 01st April 2022
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,00,48,589 500.49 5,00,48,589 500.49 5,00,48,589 500.49
Shares issued during the year 2,32,73,114 232.73 - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 7,33,21,703 733.22 5,00,48,589 500.49 5,00,48,589 500.45

During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company received INR 1,095 million as proceeds of 2,3
per share. The main object of the issue was to redeem 5,35,00,000, 7% Cumulative Redeemabie Preference Shares

INR 1,095 million have been utilized for redemption of RPS.

Term and rights attached with equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each holder of aguity shares is entitled to one vote

in the event of Liguidation of the Company, the holders of aquity share will be entitled to receive atter distribution of all preferential ameunts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of

equity share held by the shareholder.

Details of shar {including i diate holding comp

y) holding mare than 5 % shares in the Company

remaining assets of the company,

2,73,114 equity shares allotted on r
[RPS) of Rs. 10/- each aggragating to INR 595 million at a pre

ights issue basis to Shree Renuka Sugars Limited (Promoter Company) at a cash price of Rs. 47.05

mium of INR 400 million. Accordingly, the proceeds of

per share and also have squal right in distribution of profit/surplus in propertion to the equity

Name of shareholder

As at

31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

As at 01st April 2022

Number of shares % of shares held Number of shares % of shares held Number of shares % of shares held
Shree Renuka Sugars Limited  * 7.33,21,703 100% - 0% - 0%
Anamika Sugar Holdings Limited, Mauritius - 0% 4,99,98,589 59 90% 4,99,58,589 99.90%
Total 7,33,21,703 100% 4,99,98,589 99.90% 4,99,98,589 99.90%

+  Out of the above-mentioned shares, 10 shares are held by nominee(s) of Shree Renuka Sugars Limited and Shree Ren

uka Sugars Limited is the beneficial owner of these shares




Fote 15: Other equity

Stk As at As at As at
| 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 O1st April 2022
Secunities premium account (refer note ‘a’ below| 862,27 -
Moiasses Reserve Fund {refer note '’ below) 1.96 1.77 1.60
Fetained warnings {refer note 'c’ below) 503.92 427.44 438,43
Total 1,368.14 429.21 | 440,03
a, Securities premium account ©
: fs at As at As at
Particulars 2 i
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 01st April 2022
As at 01st April 2022 -
Shares issued during the year
As at 31st March 2023 z
Shates issued during the year 6227
As at 315t March 2024 862,27 - | 3
b Molasses reserve fund -
Faicdiare As ar Asat Asat
31st March 2024 315t Mareh 2023 0151 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.77 1.60 1.44
Add- Transterred from statenent of Profit & Loss during the year 0.18 (.17 0.16 |
Balance at the end of the year 1.96 177 ] 160
. Retained earnings
[ Pariivars As at Az at As at
| 315t March 2024 31st March 2023 0151 April 2022
Balance at the beginming of the year 127.44 13843
Revaluation Reserve
Add. Pighit [/ {Loss) tor Whe year
Oither Comyj sive Imcome [exf el
Jlmsn Transfer to Molasses Heserves Fund 1016}
(Balance at the end of the year 438.43

Retained earmings

Security premium account

During the financial year 2023-24, the company has issued 23273114 equity shares ta M/s Renuka Sugars Limited

Molasses Reserve Fund

(cleficit] earned from the operations of the Company.

A ercuper of supar lactory in Uttar Pradesh, 15 required to Create a separate fund of Rs 050 per quintal o

Maiasses

I ptollases produce

at a premivm al Rs37.05% Per equily share,

cluring the year, for being utillzed for provision and for malntenance of adequate s100a|

ge facility for
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MNote 15; Borrowings {non- current|

Asat Asat As at
3131 March 2024 I1st March 2023 Olst April 2022
Secured
Term Loans [refer note 'a' and 'k’ helow)
From baiks 75.97 103,30 116.10
75.97 102 20 11610
Lews: Current maturity of long-term borrowings transleried to short term barrawings {refer note 20} 28,79 28 21| 14.71
Total 47.18) 75.07| 1@
Terms of Repayment for Borrowings sutstanding as on 31st March 2024
T
e D 1 i Etfective Rate of Asat Asatl | Bz at
RRER bk Interest 315t March 2024 S1stMarch 2023 | 315t March 2022
HDFC 24-Jun-26 9.25% 4469 (LT 500 |
LB 30 Nav-26 9,.25% 3128 42,36 5110
Term Loan
1} Wiorking Capital Term Loan (WETLL el Rs 51,10 million takan from Union Bank of India under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Ling scheme. The laan lssecured by way of edension of secing
a ouration of 5 year

tanking charge over the Frimary and collateral security for the regular warking capital fimit of the Campany {refer footnote 1 {a) of note 20} The term loan s T
year and are repayable in 48 equal manthly instalments with effect from date of disburseme
ance, Government of India. lnterect is charged by UBlat Tyear MCLA = 0.60% or 9.2

including a moratarium of 1
NOGTE (Mationa: Credil Guaraniee Trustes Company Lid. Winistey af Fi

b} Represents Working Capital 1 Loan (WCTL) ol Rs 6500 millien

axt

tion ol 4 ¥

s dndlading a modatotm af 1year and are repayable in 48 equal rmanthly instalmen

wiichever is lower

taken from HEGFS Bank Limited under Guarsnteed Dmergency Credit Ling stheme

The Company has not been declarad willtul defauiter Ly any pank or financlal instituliue er gaveriment of any government authority.

Nate 17; Lease lahilities

nvian of second ranking charge over the Pomary and callateril security for the regutar warking capital limit of the Company, [refer Toatnole 1 (i af note 20} This te,
vith effect from date of disbueserment se. 0210 2020

This fack

b e, 24062021, This facility 15 covered by 1004 gaarantes from
S whichever ks lower

This tnan 15 sacured by way of

n lgan = for 4

Iy eoivored by 1000

antee from MCGTE (National Credit Guarantee Trustea Company Lid. Minntny of Finance, Gowernment ol India, [nterest is charged by HBFC Bank al I yeat PATLR » 0.30% ar h15%

Particulars As at Asat As ab
315t March 2024 1 vlarch 2023 st dpril 2022
Current 016 [+E2} Loo
Mart- current 18 0.19 0.19
Total 0.34 0.82 1.2%
HMaote 18 Deferred tan Liahilities (net)
As st Az at
31st March 2024 3ist March 2023
Deferred tax ©
ating to origimation and reversal of tomperary differences and writerdown of defeired tas asset [BERGH
Income tax expense reported in the staternent of profit and lass [13.62}
OCl Section
Deferred tax related 10 items recognised in OC) during the year
A5 at Asat
31st March 2024 3131 March 2023
Wet joss on remeasurements of defined Lenelit plans 1.01 077 |
Incame tax expenses/{income| charged to OC 1.01 D.??j
f Asat Asat i s at
31st March 2024 3s1 March 2023 Gl April 2022
Deterred tas Hability
Difference between camying value of FPL and WY as per e incanie 13 el | 19835 21143 245,80
Defereed tax liability | 198.35 | 21133 225,80
Deterred Tax Arset
Detarrad tas an KD G laase labibty 0oz 0.9
Provision fur eeplayee benelits 1353 ol
Disallowance under secuon 438 Li&3
Provision {of credit imgaired assets 3 66 3483
Defeirwd tax assels 1 17.21 16,16
fet deferred tan assets/ [lability) | 18115 | 209,64 |
Presented in the halance sheet as follows |
Deterred Tax Assets (OTA4) 1721 b 08 1616
Deterred Tax Labilities (DTL) 198,35 21133 22580
Deferred Tax Liabilities {OTL) |181.15} [195.35) (209.64)
Heconciliation of deferved assets[iliahilities):
Asat Asal As at
315t March 2024 31st March 2023 Olst April 2022
Opening balance (195,25] |2c9.64} [20%.64]
Tax incamey [expense] dueing the peniod recognised in profit and koss 1309
Tax income/expenie) during the pernod recognised in OCI LI
Closing baleies [F= [181.15]

efarred tax dssels are recognised Tor unised tax losues to the eatent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agasinst which the losses can be util

of,

Juctgernent |5 requites tu determing the amounl of daterred tax assets that can be recognised, based upen the likeby timing and the level of Tulure tawiaktle profisy

Meite 18 Mot employes benclit Habilitles [son-current)

Sigaficant managemnant

As &t
31st March 2024

As it
3131 March 2023

Tprovision for employes benefits

Frovision for zratust

Juntundnd) {Al5o refer nate 36)
Total

36.03

4132

As &t
0ist April 2022

2B47 |

3603

§l.32

2847 |




Nate 20: Borrowings (current)

Asat 4s at I Asat
31t March 2024 31st March 2023 D1st April 2022

Secured
Current Maturities of long tenm bor pwin 1879 7871 1471
Cash credit {including WCDL] [refer foalnate 1o and "Ll belaw) 71845 6 bl 54653
Short Term loan from bank (refer footnete "2 below) 150 G0 (RCIEUH
Unsecured
Prefarance Share Capital - 1,064.90 1,40018.75

Total [ 747.24 1,948.77 1,670.00

Foot Note :

1a. Cash Cradit amaunting ta Bs 498,20 millions (Previous year Rs 43130 milions] from \Union Bank of India | e-Corporation Bank) secured by Paripassu First charge by way of hypothecation
of Inventary cum Book Debits and Other Current Assets of the tompany and alsa secured Ly wWay of Collateral Security- EN/Paripassu first charge on Faclory Land & Building and P&
situated al Village Bliandaria, P.O Aurangabad st Brslandshahr (U 8}

b Cash Credit amaunting 1o As 22025 m
Vilage Shandoria, PO, Aurangabad, B

ing Previaus year He 215,38 millions) from NOFC Batik Limited secured Ly gar pa
Is Usiatr Bank of india | e-Co

w mortgige charge ever factory Land and Bulding stuated at

Alion Bankl, Bl patsy hypothezation charge avet all eaisting af o fiaturis Bavable Flued

fssats of the Company weth Union dans of inidla | e-Coiperation Bank) and pari passu hypothecation charge over all exsting and Tuture curren
inciia | e-Corparation Bank)

sty of the Company with Unian Bank of

2 Ghart Term Loan ambunting 1o B3 NIl [Previous vear 150,00 milkigns] Tram HOFC Bank Limited sacured by pari passy mortgage charge over Fartgry Land and gudding situaied at Willa

Ahandona, B4 Aurangabad, st Bulandshahar (U2 with Union Bank of Indéa | & Corparatian Bank], Pat-passu hypothacatioh charge over all exsting and tuture !

v ble Fied fsaets ol

tiye Campany wah Unan Bank of India | e-Corporation Bank} ang par passu hypothecation charge uver all ealsing antl fuluie current assets of the Canmguany withi
Corporation Bank] and 4 post dated cheques eauwaient to loan amaunt drawn an LUnon Bank of Indid, Repayabie in three instaliments of & 500 lacs each on 19.08.2023, 04.09.2093 and
19,00 2023 respectively

van GBank of india | ¢

Preference Share Capital

Uuring the yaar ended 31st March 2024, the Company recelved Ry 1.095 million as praceeds of £,32,73,114 pauity shates allotted an rights 1ssue bass 1o Shree Rerika Sugars Limited
{Pramatar Company | al a cash price of Rs. 4705 pet thare. The maln ahject of the naue was 1o redeam B6,95,00,000, 7% cumutative Redeemable Preference Shares [RFSH of As. 19/ each
aggregating to Bs 695 millien at a premium of Rs 400 mdilion. Accordingly, the procesds of Rs 1,095 millign have baen utilized far redeniption af APS

Mote 21: Trade payables

Asat Asat A at
31st March 2024 31at March 2023 O1st April 2022
Tatal outstanding sues af micra and small enterprises L0k 154 134
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra and small enterpnses 520.88 219.22 426 85
Total SZI;f 220,76 428,14

Trate payabiles are non-interest bearing and are narmally settled within the credit period agread with 1he suppiel.
“The details of ampunts outstanding ta Micra, Small and Methurn Enterprises based on information availalle with the Company 15 @5 undes

- A at Asat Az at
Particulars

315t March 2024 315t March 2023 01st Apnil 2022
The gtingipal amount and the interast due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as ai the end gf each accounling
P
Brincipal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1 U6 154 134
- Interest due on above i .
Total 1.06 184 134

The amount af interest paid by the biyer in terms al section 16 of the MSRAELD Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
pavment made to thic

cappller bioyani 1lie appainied iy during eacs accounting year

The amaunt of interest dus and gayvabie tor the penod of delay in making paymient (which have Leen paid but beyod
the appoinied day during the year) but without adding the interest spacified under the MSMED Act, 2006 .

Thie amasnt of inteiest acorued and remaining unpaid at the eod af gach accounting year

The amaunt &f Rirther interast remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such date when the
interest dues 35 above are actually paid to the small enterprise lor 1he purpose of disaflowance as & deductinle]

eapanditure under section 13 of the BASTALD Act 2006, J




Trade payables Ageing Schedule

Az at Asat As at —_l
31st Wiarch 2024 | 3lst March 2023 01zt April 2022
Outstanding for tollowing periods from due date of paymant
1 MSME -
Lass than 1 year LUG 1.54 134
1.7 years
2:3 years <
Iuie than 3 years 2
106 1.54 134
ii. Others !
Liess than L yaar 51770 208.04 41538
1-2 years 103 142 Lt
2:4 years 024 a63 127
Mare than 3 vears 181 8.98 856
520.38 219.22 426.85
iii. Disputed dues {MSMES) !
Lass than 1 year
1-2 vears
23 years :
Ifore than 3 vears - .
i, Disputed dues [Gthers)
Lest than L yuar E
L-2yeals
2-3 yeary -
Mate than 3 years
Tatsl
Less than 1 yaar 51876 2H9.63 a416.7%
1-2 years 103 152 164
2-3 years .24 063 127
Muara than 3 years 1,81 a.94 8.56
52194 2078 428,15

There areno “unbilled” t

163,27 nullian)

sile payabies, nence the same are not disclased In the ageing schadule. Less than | year includes “Nat due” trage payables of MR 236,45 millan |

st

Note 22: Other current financial liahilities
As at As at A at |
31t March 2024 31st March 2023 o1t Aprli ZUL|
Interest accrued and due on borrawings L.06 132 na2
Payatles against capital goods z.i0 [LEE] 134
Pertormance/ ESAD fram ageits 612 652 663
Depisits frem weighment clerks 020 0.20 (X1
abile to employees 1148 1113 L16
o lor Bpensad 877 4.8 5.03
Total 29.83 25,05 2490
tote 23: Other cusrent labilities
’— Asat Asal Asat
11t March 2024 315t Masch 2023 01st April 2022
Advance from custemears 5.97 4.51 433
Statutory dues pay ble Li.31 12 55 21.47
Total 20.27 17.06 31.21
Mote 24: Met employes benefit lahilities
Agat A at Asat
315t March 2024 315t March 2023 Olst April 2022
Proviwon for employee benelits:
Provision for gratuity {unfunded) (Alse refer nete 36} [ 4.80 403
Provision lor leave encashment 6.25 G4l 5,59
Total 12.59 11.20 962 |




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN: U15422012010PTC200012

(all amaunts are in rupees million, unless otharwise stated)

Note 25: Revenue from operations

e Year ended Year enuun_!
Farticutars 315t March 2024 31st March 2023 |
Revenue from contract with customers
sale of manufactured sugar 2,898.70 2.624.83
Sale of traded goods ¥2.31 28.82
sale of by-products and others 307.31 135.18
Other Operating Income
szles of Scrap generated from operating activities 93,60 20.65
Sugar Exports benefits from thirg party licenses - 83
Other recoveries aon Sugar Sale 1.47 3.25
Total 3,323.38 2,9-1‘:1,55

Pertormance obligation

The perfarmance abligatian is satisfied upon delivery of the goods 1o custamers and an performance of services

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with

the contracted price

: Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024| 31st March 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 3,224.32 2,838.83
Less: Discount .
Less Trade promolicn expenses x i
Revenue from contract with customers 3,228.32 2,838.83

Wote 26: Other income

Particulars

vear ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Other non-operating income:

Excess provision of earfier years written back
Oth
Ciwvidend on Curre

ales - Scran

t Investmants

Miscellangous Income

Interest on Income tax refund

Finance income:

|nterest Incame on fixed deposits

|nterest on financial assets carried at amertized cost and others
Total

1.40
Q.08

13.93

Mote 27: Cost of raw materials consumed

Year ended

Year ended

Particuiars
315t March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Raw Materials Consumed
Sugar Cane Consumed
COpening Stock 0.33 485
Add: Purchates 2,909.65 239038
Less: Closing Stock [0.91) [0.33)
Total 2,909.07 2,394.90
Note 28: Purchases of Traded Goods
R Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
es5f Insec 23,05 30.47
Total 23.05 30.47

Note 29: Increase/{decrease) in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
traded goods

progress and intermediate products ano

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Closing Stock

Finished Goods 1,894.25 1,585 66
Work in Progress 25.58 27.23
Total (A) 1,919.84 1,622.89
Opening Stock

Finished Goods 1,525.66 1,575:13
Waork in Progress 27.23 7 5
Total (B) 1,622.89 1,597.38

Total (B) - (A) {296.95) {25.51)

Ton"




Note 30: Employee benefit expenses

iR Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024| 31st March 2023
salaries, Wages and Bonus 113.45 124.25
Gratuity expensas (also refer rote 36) £.11 4.54
Cantribution to Provident and Other funds 9.02 10.4%
Sraff welfare expenses 2.40 .45
Total 129.98 141.74
Note 31: Depreciation and amortisation expenses
B Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2024| 31st March 2023
Depreciation of Tangible Azsets {also refer nate 3] 120.09 8775
Amortisation of rignt of use assets (refer note 4) 1.62 1.&d
Amartisatian of intangible Assets (refer note 34) 0.00 =
Total 121.71 89.55 |
Note 32: Finance costs
: Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

Interest on:

Term loans 14.48
Preference shares 55.14
Working capitat 28.11
Others:
Interest on athers ] 0,58
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 004 0.08
Luan processing charges and other charges 0.91 1.58
Total 78.95 99.97
Mote 33: Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 2
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Consumption of Stores and Spares 62.08 58.23
Consumption af Chemicals, Consumables, oil and Lubricants 1826 20.68
Packing Materials 28.70 2810
Power and Fuel 5.56 5,68
Rent 153 1.52
Repairs and Maintenance
-Plant & Machinery 23.02
-Bulldings 31.38
JOthers 2,29
Hates and Taxes 15.97
Insurance 3.38
Legal and Professional Fees 4.58
Payment to auditors (refer note 'a’ below] 0.50
Handling Charges 11.31
Commission Expenses 7.13
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 8.81
Cane Expensas 2.05
Less an Sale of PPE (net) 1.42
Safety and Security Expenses 34.33
Membership & Subscription 0.56
Bank Charges 0.10
CSR Expenditure (refer note b’ below) 2.48
Store Inventary written off 4.36
Wiscellaneous expenses 4.04 4.94
Total 247.34 237.06
a. Payment to Auditors
Baiticilars vear ended vear ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Audit fee 0.50 0.20
Limited review -
Cartifizatinn Services - 0.00
ln other capacity:
Other services =
Reimbursement of expenses - 0.01
Total B 0.50 0.21
b. Details of CSR expenditure:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31st Warch 2024|  31st March 2023
Gross armount required 1o be spent by the Company during the year 248 244
Amount aparoved by the Board to be spent during the year 248 248
Amount spent during the year ending 31st March 2024 :
(i} Canstruction or acquisitian of any assets 2,40 -
(ii] On purpose other than aboave {i) 0.08 2.46
2.48 2.46
Details related to spent [ unspent obligations:
i} Ambulance to primary health care 2.40
i) Donated cooler to Lakhawati Hosoita 0.08
i1} Development & Maintenance of Buiiding used for educaticn of under-
privilegad section bf Secisty, especially women
Total 248




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PRIVATE LIMITED
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(Al amounts are in rupees million, unless atherwise stated)

Note 34:

Note 35:
a.

Earnings Per Share [EPS]

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of cguity shares outstanding during

the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to eguity holders of the Company by tha weightad average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity

The follawing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

shares into equily shares

Year ended
31st March 2023

Year ended
31st March 2024

Profit atiributable to equity halders for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share {in
mullions) 76.66
Number of equity shares for basic EPS 73,321,703
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted Eps=* 61,303,620
Earnings Per Share
Basic, computed an the basis of profit from operations attributable to equity holders of the 1.05
Campany
Diluted, computed on the basis of profit from operations attributable to equity holders of the 1.25
Company

(10.82)
50,048,589
50,048,589

(0.22)

“* Weishted average number of equity shares Lakes intg account the wei hted average effect of changes in share transa
g g & B

Commitment and contingencies
Capital commitments
Outstanding commitments of the Company are as follows:

ctions during the year.

Outstanding Commitments As at 315t March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

As at D1st April 2022

Estimated value of contract pending for execution 14219

28.50

20.56

Capital advances of INR 16.79 million (31st Mar 2023: INR 7.19 million and 01st April 2022: INR 74.29 million) is paid against the pending contracts.

Guarantees
QOutstanding guarantees of the Campany are as follows:

Outstanding Guarantees As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

As at 01st April 2022

Bank Guarantee 1.50

0.50

1.00

Contingent liabilities

Liabilities classified and considered contingent due to contested claims and legal disputes
8 ! ERARE As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

As at 01st April 2022

Exrise and Service Tax Demands {refer note (i) below) 3.00 (.74 6.74
Farmers compensation/Other dues {refer note (if) below} 11.88 11.88 11.88
Civil Cases {refer nute (i) below} - 2.06

Total 14.88 18.61 20,67

in the opinion of the management due liabilities have been fully accounted for and on final decision /settlement there would not e any material impact on account of

atrove

Disputes pertaining to denial ol cenvat credit on sugar cess,
foundation or making of structures for support of capital goods, 6%
the name of the head oftice and credit availed at plants and other matters.

Farmear's compensation / other claims disputed by the company.

Other matters malnly consist of litigations related to caims filed against Company for recovery of gratuity along with applicanle interest

denial of cenvat credit on certain items used for fabrication of machinery, or for laying of machinery
aemand under Rule 6(3) of the CENVAT Credit Rules, cenvat credit disallowed due to invoices being in




Note 36:

Defined Benefit plans

A, GRATUITY

Actuarial Assumptions

Key actuarial assumptions are given below:
Discount Rate:

The rate used to discount other long term employee benefit obligation {both funded and unfunded) will be determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet

date on high guality government bonds,

Salary Growth Rate:

This 15 Management's estimate of the increases in the salaries of the emplayees over the long term. Estimated fut
ent market.

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employm

Rate of Return on Plan Assets:

ure salary increases should take account of inflation,

This assumption is required only in case of funded plans. Interestincome on plan assets is calculated using the rate usad to discount the defined benefit chligation.

Mortality:
This assumption is based on the standard published mertality table without any adjustmant

Sr. No.

Particulars

Gratuity

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Asat 01st April 2022

Change in defined benefit obligation

Opening definea benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial gain due to change in financial assumptions

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumption
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Change in plan assets

Cpening value of plan assets

Interest income

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included interestincame
Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

Clasing value of plan assels

Fund status of plan assets

Present value unfunded obligations
Present value funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Met liability (assets)

Other comprehensive income for the current period

Due to change in financial assumptions

Due ta change in demaographic assumption

Due to experience adjustments

Raturn on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Expense recognized in other comprehensive income

Expenses far the current period

current service cost

Interest cost

Amount recognized in expenses (refer note 30)

Defined benefit liability

Net opening provision in books of accounts
Employee benefit expense

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income
Contributions to ptan assels

Benefits paid by the Company

Closing provision in books of accounts

Compaosition of the plan assets
Policy of insurance
Total

Principal actuarial assumption
Discount rate for employees (otier than leased unit)
Discount rate for employees afbeased unit

Salary grawtl La

36,11
1.46
2.65
0.56

3.09

{2.50)
42.37

C.56
3.09
3.65
2.46

2.65
5.11

7.09%
0.00

32.49
2.3
222

11.02}
3.78

[3.68)

36.11

(1.02)

231
2.2

4.53

1.33%
u.00
5%

29.34
2.04
2.03
0.12

{0.35)
10.69)
32.49

2.04
2.03
4.07

B.84%
0.00
5%




Withdrawal rates 2% 2% L
9 Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Expected Future Cash flows
Otol Year 6.34 4.80 4.03
1to2 Year 3.16 331 175
2103 Year 371 250 2.54
3to 4 Year 2.02 3.12 2.00
4to 5 Year 2.54 1.54 2.69
5 to B Year 3.99 2.11 1.36
6 year onwards 20,60 18.73 18.12
Average Expected Future Working Life (Years) 9.43 9.47 10.19
10 Sensitivity to key assumptians®
Discount rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% 41.22 35:11 31.50
(% change) -2.72% -2, 77% -2.06%
Decrease by 0.5% 43,58 37.16 33.54
% changel 2.85% 291% 3.23%
Salary growth rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% 43,60 37.18 33.55
(" change) 2.89% 2.96% 3.27%
Decrease by 0.5% 41,19 35.09 3147
|% change) -2.78% -2.84% -3.13%
11 Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in next year 5.43 4.87 4.21
*A description of methods used for sensitivity analysis and its limitations:
Sensitivity analysis performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other parameters unchanged.
Sensitivity analysis fails ta focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters, Hence, the results may vary if twa or more variables are changed
simultaneausly
The method used does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change in any parameter and the extent of the change if any.
B. LEAVE LIABILITY
Actuarial Assumptions
Key actuarial assumptions are given below
Discount Rate:
The rate used to discount other long term employee benefit obligation (both funded and unfunded) will be determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet
date on high quality government bonds.
Salary Growth Rate:
This is Management’s estimate of the increases in the salaries of the employees over the long term. Estimated future salary increases should take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factars such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Rate of Return on Plan Assets:
This assumption is cequired only in case of funded plans. Interest income on plan assets is calculated using the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation.
Mortality:
This assumption is based on the standard published mortality table without any adjustment,
Sr. No. Particulars Leave Encashmnt -
As at 31st March 2024 | Asat 31st March 2023 | As at 01st April 2022
1 Change in defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 6.41 5.59 5.01
Current service cost 0.79 049z 077
Interest cost 0.47 0.38 0.35
Actuarial gain due to change in financial assumpticens 0.08 {0.15) 0.01
Actuarial loss/{gain) due to change in demographic assumption T
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustments 0.91 1.15 0.84
Benefits paid (2.40) 11.49) {1.39)
Closing defined benefit obligation 6.25 6.41 5.59
2 Change in plan assets
Opening value of plan assets
Interast income
Return an plan assets excluding amounts included interest income
Contributions by emplayer - -
Benetits paid - - -
Closing value of plan assets . - -
3 Fund status of plan assets
Prasent value unfunded cbligations 2 . -
Prasent value funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability (assets) = - -
a Other comprehensive income for the current period

Due to change in financial assumptions
[ue to change in demoegraphic assumption ) N
Due to experience adjustments

Return on plan assets excluding a
Expense recognizggst er

unts included in interest income - - E
prehensive income - = .




5 Expenses for the current period
Current service cost 0.87 078 0.78
Interest cost 138 1.53 119
Amount recognized in expenses 2.25 231 1.97
6 Defined benefit liability
Net opening provision in hooks of accounts B
Employee benefit expense )
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income
Cantributions to plan assets =
Benefits pald by the Company -
Closing provision in books of accounts % : :
7 Composition of the plan assets
Palicy af insurance 3
Total - * '
8 Principal actuarial assumption
Discaunt rate for employees (other than leased unit} 7.09% 7.33% 6.84%
Discaunt rate for employees of leased unit 0.00 0.00 0.00
Salary growth rate 5% 5% 5%
Withdrawal 1ates 2% 2% &
9 Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Expected Future Cash flows
Otol Year 6.34 Z:81 2.46
1tod Year 3.16 0.24 0.12
2 to 3 Year 371 0.32 0.34
3 tod Year 2.03 0.32 0.19
4105 Year 2.54 012 0.24
5 to 6 Year 3.85 0.18 0.09
6 year cnwards 2060 241 2,15
Average Expected Future Working Life (vears) 9.43 9.47 10,19
10 Sensitivity to key assumptions”
Discount rate sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% 6.09 6.27 6.27
(4 change) -2.49% -2.18% -2.18%
Decrease by 0.5% 643 6.55 6.55
(% change) 2.64% 2.31% 2.31%
Salary growth rate sensitivity
increase by 0.5% 6.42 6.56 6.56
{% change} 2.68% 2.35% 2 35%
Decrease by 0.5% 6.09 6.26 6.26
(% change; -2.52% -2.24% -2.24%
11 expected contributions to the deifined benefit plan in next year 1.07 1.11 0.94
*A description of methods used for sensitivity analysis and its limitations:
Sensitivity analysis performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other parameters unchanged.
Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. Hence, the results may vary if two or more variables are changed
simultaneausly
The methed used does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change in any parameter and the extent of the change if any.
Note 37:  Related party transactions

A. List of Related Party & their Relationship
a. Ultimate Holding Company

b, Holding Campany

M.Sethia Groug Ltd. UK {till 05,10.2023)

wilmar International Limited (w.ef 36.10.2023)

Anamika Sugar Holdings Ltd., Mauritius (till 05 10.2023)

Shree Renuka Sugars Limited {w.e.f 06,10.2023)

¢. Other Related Party

& Key Management Personnel

Chitra Nirmal Sethia Education Academy (till 05.10.2023)

a. Ashok Agarwal -Whale Time Director {till 09.10.2023)

L, Dileep Kumar Fulfagar - Whole Time Directar {till 05.10:2023)
£ Arun Bhattacharya- Non-Executive Director [till 05.10.2023)
4. Amrao Jain- Non-Executive Director (il 05,10,2023)

e, Pankaj Kothari- Non-Executive Director (till 05.10.2023}

f. siddharth Ahuja — Company Secretary {31.07 2023)

g Atul Chaturvedi - Director (w.e.f. 06.10.2023)

h. Wijendra Singh - Whole Time Director {w.ef 06.10.2023)

i, Rawi Gupta- Director (w.e.f, 06.10.2023)

i Priyanka Mallick - Independant Director {w.e.f 06.10,2023)
k. Rabindra Sahoo- Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. 06.10.2023)

Vinod Annarkar- Company Secretary (w.e.f, 06,10.2023)




B. Transactions with related parties fs i million

tssuance of fresh equity
Particulars shares (SR Expenditure Remuneration

S. No.
{incl premium)
Holding Company
1 Shree Renuka Sugars Limited For the year ended 31st March, 2024 1,0585.00 -
For the year ended 315t March, 2023 -
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 - =
Other related party
2 Chitra Nirmal Sethia Education Academy For the year ended 31st March, 2024 = =
Far the year ended 31st March, 2023 3 -
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 - 4.23
Key Management Personnel
3 Ashok Aggarwal For the financial year 23-24 - 2,82
Fur the financial year 22-23 - - 2483
For the financial year 21-22 < - 293
4 Dileep Kr. Fulfagar For the financial year 23-24 - = 0.7%
Far the financial year 22-23 = - 0.84
For the financial year 21-22 . - 0.84
5 Siddharth Ahuja For the financial year 23-24 - - 033
For the financial year 22-23 . - 0.68
For the financial year 21-22 - 0.87
C. Transactions with key managerial personnel
Compensation of key managerial personnel®
As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31st March 2023 | Asat01st April 2022
short-term employee benefits 3.86 4.36 453
Contribution to provident fund 0.05 0.C9 0.10
Total 3.91 4.45 4.63
“Gratuity for Key managerial personnel is included in overall provision
Note 38: The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment snd post employment received ndian Farliament approval and Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently on 13 November 2020 draft rules were published and invited for
stakeholders' suggestions, However, the date on which the Cade will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it
comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective
Note 39: The ADM (F& R) Bulandshahr has raised a demand in earlier year on account of Stamp Duty of Rs 84.65 millions in respect of land transferred in favour of Agauta Sugar &
Chermical Ltd.[ASCL) as stated parcel of land which have been purchased by the company. The Company has filed a Writ patition at Altahabad High Court chalienging the
demand on Company and Hon'ble Court has stayed the stated demand. Further, the cumpany has referred the matter ta the ASCL as in view of the definitive terms of
signed contract (Business Transfer Agreement between the Company and Agauta Sugar & Chemical Ltd {ASCL)), the Company believes that it has no liability, Payment, if
any, required to be made for the same will be fully recoverable from the ASCL.
Note 40: In the opinion of the Board, Property, Plant & Equipment, trade receivables and loans and advances and other assets have a value on realization in the ardinary course of
business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated,
Notedlr The U.P. State Government vide Notification dated 12.06.2015 had granted concession by way of reduction of cane society comnussion for Sugar Season 2015 16 and

also for Sugar season 2012-13 & 2014-15 with retrospective affect. Since the stated commission was already paid to concern Societies, 4 refund receivable of Rs 12.54
millions had been recognised in the FY 2015-16. The Hon'ble Allahabad High Court vide Order dated 21.12.2017 quashed the UP State Government Notifications Order
for reduction in Cane commission rates to Societies with retrospective effect against which UP state Government has preferred appeal before Supreme Court Pending
Final decision in the matter, the Company management has decided to make 100% provision in the current financial year against this amount,




ANAMIKA SUGAR MILLS PVT LTD

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
Note 42: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio MNumarator Denominatar 31st March | kst March | % change Keason for variance
2024 2023
Current Ratio Current Assats Current Liabilities 1.49 0.76 94.49%|Change  in  Current  ratio s
attributable 1o Increase 0
Inventoty  and  decrease N
liabilities due to repaymant Ol
Preference Shares during the
current year
Debt- Equity Satia Total Debt Shareholder's Equity Q.38 218 -§2.63%|Change debt-egquity  ratio. 15
attributzhle 1o Increase N
sharaholder's equity during the
current year
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings bafore interest,  |Interest Expense on lang term 2.57 £6.24% |Change in ratio is attribut big 10
Depreciation and Tax and short term borrowings for Increase in EBIDTA ring  the
[EBITDA) the period+ Schedule principal current yaar
repayment of long term
morrowings during the gericd
Return on Equity Ratic Wet Profits after taxes —  |Average Sharehalder’s Equity 5.06% .116%| -537.329 Charge in return on eguity ratio is
Preference Dividend attributable  ta ncrease  in
shareholder's equity during the
current year and repayment ol
interast on Preference Shares
Inventory Turnaver Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 145 1.44 0.28%
Trade Receivabies Turnover Ratio  |Mer creditsales = Gross  |Average Trade Receivable WA N.A
credit sales - sales return
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Neteredit purchases of Average Trade Payables 7.50 747 5.63%
goods & services = Gross
cradit purchases -
purchase return
Met Capital Turnover Ratio tet sales = Total sales - Waorking capital = Current 494 (5.43)| -190.95%|Change in Met Capital turnover
zales return + Income assels = Current labilities ratio is attributable to increase in
frum incentive Net Sales during the current year
coupled with Increase in
Inventeries  and repovrent  off
Preference Shares during the same
penad,
et Profit Ratio Met Profit Met sales = Total sales - sales 2.31% -0.37%| -728.18% [Net profit ratic has ncreased on
return = income from account of increased profit after
Incentive 1ax during the current year.
Heturn an Capital Empioyed Earnings before interest  |Capital Employed = Tangible G6.60% 3.09%| 113.96%|Increase in  return on  capital
and taxes Net Waorth + Total Debt + employed is on account of increase!
Deferred Tax in tangible net worth on account
of net profit earned and decraaze
in total dent due to redemption af
Praterence Share  during  the
current year
Asturn on Investment on unguoted |Dividend Income + Opening value of unquoted  [M.A. MNA MN.A
equity Instruments Fairvalue gainflozs on squity instruments
unguated equity
instruments J




Note: 43

[A]

{al

{b)

(c)

{d)

(e)

(f)

Note on adjustments made to comparative financial information (First-Time Adoption of Ind AS)

These are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS by the Company.

The accounting policies and other principles set out in Note 1 and 2 hava baen applied in preparing financial statements far the year
ended March 31, 2024, the comparative infermation presented in these financial statements tor the year ended March 31, 2023 and
in preparation of an opening ind AS balance sheet at Apnl 01, 2022 {the transition date). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance
sheat, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared In accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting standards) Rules and other relevant provisions of the act (previous
GAAP or Indian GAAR).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's Equity & other comprehensive
income s set out in foliowing tables and notes.

Ind AS optional exemptions (Deemed cost)

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter 10 slect measure an item of praperty, plant and equipment at the date of transition to Ind
ASs at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

Accardingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their fair value as an April 01, 2022

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS's at the date of transition to Ind AS chall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimate were inerror.

Thers s no such estimate which is changed while applying Ind AS. All the estimates as per previous GAAP is carried forward as in Ind
AS transition balance sheet as at April 01, 2022,

further, The Company made estimates for Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Ind
AS at the date of transition as these wera not required under previous GAAP

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity Lo assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date

of transitian. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accumulated at amortised cost based on facts and
circumstances at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on tha
date of transition

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans

Under Ind AS, Remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net

interest expanse on the net defined liability, are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit and loss in previous
GAAP.

Deferred Tax

Under Ind AS, deferred tax has been recalculated in respact of above changes and the deferred tax impact as at the wansition date
has been recognised in opening resarves and for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been recognised in the Statement of profit and
185,

Preference Share
Under Ind AS, preference shares has been considerred as financial liability and unpaid dividend has been considarred as finance cost

Lease accounting under IND-AS 116

Under Ind AS, ROU and lease liability has been recognised as per IND-AS 116 and accordingly interest expenses and depreciation has
been charged and rental expenses has been reversed in prefit & loss account.



(i

(i)

(it}

(i)

These errors have been corrected by restating respectivie accounts in the financial statement for the respective prior periods, as

follows:

Particulars
As per IGAAP (a)
As per IND-AS (b}
Impact on equity [increase/(decrease) in equity] {b)-{a)

Impact on eguity due 1o restatemeant as an 1st April 2022

Preferance share considerred as Financial Liability 1f)

Interest on preference Share (f)

Impact of fair valuation of Property, Plant & Equipments & Dapreciation (a)
tmpai ment of financial assets based on expected credit [0ss model (b)
Defarred tax asset/(Liability) (&)

Impact of Interest & others as per IND-AS 116 {g)

Others

Impact on statement of profit ar loss lincrease/{decrease) in profit]

Depreciation and amortization expenses on revaluation
interest on Preference Share (f)

Impact of Interest & others as per IND-AS 116 (g}
remeasurement of defined benefit plans (d)

Others

Remneasurement of Deferred tax liability / Assets (e)

Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) lincrease/(decrease) in EPS]
Earnings per share

tasic

Diluted

impact on other comprehensive income [increase/(decrease} on OCI]

rameasurement of defined benefit plans (d)
Deferred tax on remeasurement of defined benetit plans (e}

fecaonciliation of restated other equity compared to audited other equity as at 1st April 2022

Particulars Maolasses Retained
Reserve fund earnings
As per audited financial statements (under igaap) 1.60 160.97
Restatement due tao:
Interest on preference Share (f} {313.75)
Impact of fair valuation of Property, Plant & Equipments (a) 756.90
Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model (b} {13.15)
Deferred tax asset/|Liability) (e) (152.53)
Derived balance of other equity (refer statement of changes in 1.60 438.43

equity)

Reconciliation of restated other equity compared to audited other equity as at 31st March 2023

Particulars Molasses Retained
Reserve fund earnings
As per audited financial statements ligaap) 1.77 228.68
Restatement due to:
Restatement as at 1st April 2022 (Refer 277.46
Iimpact on statement of profit or loss [increase/(decrease) in profit] (76.71)
Impact on other comprehensive income [increase/{decrease) on OCI] 11.99}
Derived halance of other equity [refer statement ef changes in 1.77 427.44

equity)

As at
31st March
2023
1,425.94
8729.70

(496.24)

(417.54)

(55.14)
{42.35)

18.71
0.30

{0.22)
(76.71)
142.35}
{55.14)

0.30

2.76
10.22)
17.94

11 58)
(1.58)

12.76)
077

Total
162.57
{313.75)
756.90
[13.15)

(152.53)

440.03

Total
230.45
27746
(¥6.71)
[1.99)

429.21

As at
1st April 2022

1,358.06
940.52

(417.54)

(695.00)

(313.75)
756.90
{13.15}

(152.53)



Note 44:  Other Statutory Information
i) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the prohibition of
Benami Praperty Transaction Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is et to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(wi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding [whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
|a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
|b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{wii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

(viii)  There were no Scheme of Arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the year

{ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Note 45: Miscellaneous Income includes income from development of sugarcane seeds of INR 2.05 Million during the financial year 2023-24 and
INR 2.08 Million during the financial year 2022-23.

Note 46; Pursuant to acquisition of entire equity stake of the Company by M/s Shree Renuka Sugars Limited {“Shree Renuka") from its existing
shareholders, in terms of share purchase agreement dated September 26, 2023, Shree Renuka became the Holding Company of the
Company w.e.f. October 06, 2023. Further as holding Company is a listed entity, Company is required to prepare its financial statements
/ financial results as per Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) with effect from the transition date of April 01, 2022 (“transition date”).

Note 47: As per Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segments’ if a financial statement contains both consolidated and standalone financial statements,
segment information is required to be disclosed only in the consolidated financial statements. Hence, the same is not given in
standalone financial statement.

Note 48: Previous year's figures have been regrouped Jreclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year presentation.
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